
 

 
Telephone Enquiries: Susan Gardner, Democratic Services (01254) 380184 
Email:  susan.gardner@hyndburnbc.gov.uk 
Published on Tuesday, 31 January 2017 

Page 1 of 1  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Communities and Wellbeing Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee 
 
Tuesday, 7 February 2017 at 5.30 pm, 
Queen Elizabeth Room, Scaitcliffe House, Ormerod Street, Accrington 
 
Membership 
 
Chair: Councillor Eamonn Higgins (in the Chair) 
 
Councillors Bernadette Parkinson, Mohammad Ayub, Loraine Cox, Kath Pratt and Glen Harrison 
 
Cooptees: Dave Parkins 

 

A G E N D A 
 
 

1.   Apologies for Absence and Substitutions   
 
 

2.   Declarations of Interest and Dispensations   
 
 

3.   Presentation on the Proposal for Changes to Care at Calderstones Hospital NHS 
Trust  (Pages 3 - 42) 
 
Representatives of NHS England, Lesley Patel (Director of Nursing) and Andrew 
Simpson (Transformation Manager Mental Health Learning Disabilities) to provide a 
presentation on the consultation for the proposed redesign of learning disability and 
autistic spectrum disorder services in the North West.    
 

 
 

Extra-Ordinary Meeting 
of=== 

Public Document Pack



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

REPORT TO: Extraordinary Meeting of the Communities and 
Wellbeing Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

DATE: 07 February 2017 

PORTFOLIO: Cllr Munsif Dad - Health and Communities 

REPORT AUTHOR: Overview and Scrutiny Officer 

TITLE OF REPORT: Consultation for the proposed redesign of learning 
disability and autistic spectrum disorder services in 
the North West 

EXEMPT REPORT  
(Local Government 
Act 1972, Schedule 
12A)  

No Not applicable 

KEY DECISION: No If yes, date of publication:  

 
  
1. Purpose of Report 
 
1.1 To make members aware of the consultation for the proposed redesign of learning 

disability and autistic spectrum disorder services in the North West and the local 
effects of this. 

 
 
2. Recommendations  
 
2.1 That the Communities and Wellbeing Overview and Scrutiny Committee considers a 

formal response to the consultation. 
 
 
3. Reasons for Recommendations and Background 
 
3.1 An extraordinary meeting of the Committee has been called by the Chair in order for 

the committee to consider and respond to the “Consultation for the proposed redesign 
of learning disability and autistic spectrum disorder services in the North West” before 
the deadline on 23rd February. 

 
3.2 Members will be aware that at the meeting on 28th June 2017, the committee received 

a report on Transforming Care / Calderstones NHS, which discussed proposals for 
future services. At the meeting, the Committee resolved: 

 
 (1)  That a report be submitted to Full Council recommending that the Council support 

the retaining of facilities at Calderstones for medium and low security patients; 
 

Page 3

Agenda Item 3.



 

 

            (2)  That there be greater public consultation to provide for greater informed decision 
making; and  

 
            (3)  That the Council writes to the Chief Executive of NHS England to outline the 

Council’s concerns over the closure of the in-patient facilities at Calderstones NHS 
Trust and to urge reconsideration of using the purpose built facilities for future medium 
and low secure patients. 

 
3.3 The recommendations to Council were accepted, and a letter was written to the Chief 

Executive of NHS England on 18th July 2016 which outlined the Council’s concerns. A 
response was received on 28th July. 

 
3.4 The following representatives from NHS England will be in attendance at the meeting 

to present to the Committee: 
 
 Lesley Patel – Director of Nursing, Specialised Commissioning North 

Andrew Simpson – Transformation Manager, Mental Health Learning Disabilities, 
Specialised Commissioning North West 

 
3.5 A copy of the presentation is included in Appendix 1 
 
3.6 The consultation document which is available until 23rd February 2017 is included in 

Appendix 2 for members to consider. 
 
 
4. Alternative Options considered and Reasons for Rejection 
 
4.1 Not applicable 
 
 
5. Consultations 
 
5.1 None directly relating to this meeting.  
 
 
 
6. Implications 
 

Financial implications (including 
any future financial commitments 
for the Council) 
 

Not applicable – none arising directly from 
this report. 

Legal and human rights 
implications 
 

Not applicable 

Assessment of risk 
 

Not applicable 

Equality and diversity implications Not applicable  

 

Page 4



 

 

A Customer First Analysis should be 
completed in relation to policy 
decisions and should be attached as 
an appendix to the report.  
 

 
 
7. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985: 

List of Background Papers  
 
 
7.1 Agenda, reports and minutes of the Communities and Wellbeing Overview and 

Scrutiny Committee on 28th June 2016 
https://democracy.hyndburnbc.gov.uk/mgAi.aspx?ID=1487 

 
7.2 Agenda, reports and minutes of Council on 7th July 2016 

https://democracy.hyndburnbc.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=130&MId=1060&Ver
=4 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 5

http://hyntranet/index.php?option=com_remository&Itemid=80&func=startdown&id=1407
https://democracy.hyndburnbc.gov.uk/mgAi.aspx?ID=1487
https://democracy.hyndburnbc.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=130&MId=1060&Ver=4
https://democracy.hyndburnbc.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=130&MId=1060&Ver=4


This page is intentionally left blank



31/01/17

1

www.england.nhs.uk

Transforming Care:

Proposed Redesign of Learning Disability 

services in the Northwest

Presentation for the Staff at Whalley

January 2017

www.england.nhs.uk 2

1 Introduction

2 Appreciation

3 Setting the Scene for 

Consultation

4 Case for Change

5 The Proposal

6 Low Secure Unit 

Proposal

7 Community 

Developments

8 Proposed Statements

9 Feedback and Next 

Steps

10 Consultation Principles

Contents

Page 7



31/01/17

2

www.england.nhs.uk

The aim of the presentation is to:

• Explain the background to the proposals being put 

forward in this consultation

• Go through the proposals

• Explain how to take part

• Describe what will happen next

• Offer an opportunity to ask questions

• Have a table discussions and collect your views to 

inform the consultation

3

1 Introduction

www.england.nhs.uk

• It is acknowledged that the changes proposed in the 

consultation are challenging

• NHSE appreciate the ongoing dedication and 

commitment of the whole workforce

• NHSE are aware that the outcome could impact on 

over 800 people across a wide range of clinical, 

administrative and management services

• Ongoing engagement with staff is critical to the 

success of the outcome

4

Appreciation

Page 8



31/01/17

3

www.england.nhs.uk

The background to the consultation is based on:

• 2012 Winterbourne View Concordat which committed to “the 

development of personalised, local, high-quality services” 

and “the closure of large-scale inpatient services

• February 2015 NHS England publicly committed a review of 

inappropriate and outmoded inpatient facilities and 

establishing stronger support in the community 

• October 2015 - “Building the right support”  - improve 

community support and seek to close up to half inpatient 

beds for LD.  But, where health needs cannot be met in the 

community able to access high-quality assessment and 

treatment in hospital

• Establishment of transforming Care Partnerships across the 

country including the  North West who are developing 

community based models

5

2. Setting the scene for the 

Consultation

www.england.nhs.uk

• To develop person-centred care and sustainable services 
for people with a learning disability or autism or both that 
stand the test of time

• To deliver a community-focused model of care closer to 
home and to other services such as transport and easier 
transition for people when they move on

• Provide hospital care  where needed which has specialist 
services for people who are not able to make the choice to 
live in the community 

• People with LD or autism or both, families and carers are 
always involved in decisions about their care and support

• To Improve quality of life and quality of services by 
investment in community services and integrated support 
when discharging patients.

6

3.  Case for Change 

Page 9



31/01/17

4

www.england.nhs.uk

Outline proposal for medium and 

low secure services for learning 

disabilities or ASD or both in the 

North West considers:

• Medium Secure Service 

and developments so far

• Low Secure Services and 

proposed bed modelling

7

4.   The Proposal

www.england.nhs.uk

This option would see the closure of the Mersey Care 
Whalley site and the provision of a smaller planning units to 
meet the specific populations across the North West  for:

8

5. Option 1: low secure beds

� Services for women

� Autistic Spectrum 

Disorder and Learning 

Disability

� Enduring needs

� Mainstream Services

This is our preferred option

Page 10



31/01/17

5

www.england.nhs.uk

• Individuals receiving medium secure care who are 

currently accommodated on the sites that made up 

Calderstones Partnership NHS Foundation Trust 

would receive medium secure care at the site being 

developed at Maghull (Merseyside)

• A consultation has already been carried out by 

Mersey Care NHS Foundation Trust in relation to 

medium secure mental health services. The 

proposed model of care aims to provide “Perfect 

Care” (set out in consultation document)

9

Option 1: medium secure beds

www.england.nhs.uk

• Inpatient  services supported by 
specialist support teams

• The NHS and councils working 
together – transforming care 
partnerships

• Aligned budgets between NHS and 
local councils to ensure right care in 
right place

• Local transforming care plans 
designing community services specific 
to their areas

10

6.   Community Developments

Page 11



31/01/17

6

www.england.nhs.uk

• Retain elements of the Mersey Care Whalley estate to 
provide secure services but with less beds

• Option two is actually 

• Option 2A – 40 beds remain at Whalley

• Option 2B – 56 beds remain at Whalley

This is not our preferred option as it doesn’t:

• promote change

• doesn’t push the boundaries and explore new models of 
care still maintains a large number of beds in a campus 
style arrangement 

• has the potential to continue the long lengths of stay we 
see with the current cohort of patients

11

Option two

www.england.nhs.uk

People are being asked to comment on the following statements:

1. Adults who have a learning disability or ASD or both should have the opportunity to 
receive their care in a community setting close to their home.

2. Some people who use services will require forensic services under the Mental Health 
Act in secure facilities for long periods of time as part of their programme of care. 
These people where possible will benefit from accommodation in smaller units that 
are adaptable to their needs with clear treatment goals.

3. The proposed model of care would provide assessment pathways to ensure that the 
least restrictive care options are chosen and hospital care is considered only when 
all other choices have been exhausted.

4. People with longer term needs who use services and require ongoing secure care 
should receive this in an environment that enhances their quality of life as effectively 
as possible.

5. Based on the ‘homes not hospitals’ principle of ‘Building the right support’, 
institutionalised medium and low secure care should not be delivered on the Mersey 
Care Whalley site, (formerly Calderstones Partnership NHS Foundation Trust). As 
such option one set out in section four is the preferred option

12

7.   Consultation Statements:

Page 12



31/01/17

7

www.england.nhs.uk

• Online at 

https://www.engage.england.nhs.uk/consultation/learn

ing-disability-services

• By requesting a printed copy of the consultation 

document from 

england.northspecialisedcorporate@nhs.net or 

telephone 011382 54657 and returning it in the 

postage paid envelope

• An easy read version of the document is also 

available

13

How to take part

www.england.nhs.uk

• The consultation is open until 23 February 2017

• All feedback received during consultation will be considered by 

NHS England and its commissioning partners and key 

stakeholders. A short report, setting out the consultation 

feedback, will be published on NHS England’s website with a link 

to our partners websites.

14

Feedback and next steps

Page 13



31/01/17

8

www.england.nhs.uk

• The consultation length: 12 weeks available online and printed copies to be 
sent out to meet requests

• It has been publicised through press releases, social media, emails, letters 
and requests to partner organisations to let all their contacts know

• Consultation events are being held at the Whalley site for families and 
carers, staff and patients are being supported 1:1 to take part. Consultation 
meetings also taking place across the North West for people with a learning 
disability and their families/carers facilitated by an advocacy organisation

• Easy read version of the consultation guide / web based consultation / hard 
copy at events and available on request/postage free return/ dedicated 
phone line for queries. 

• On line consultation events for charities support groups and others who 
wish to attend 

• NHS England are attending a wide variety of meetings, many in public to 
explain the consultation and answer questions to enable people to take part

15

9. Consultation practicalities 

Page 14



1 
 

 

Consultation for the proposed 
redesign of learning disability and 

autistic spectrum disorder services 
in the North West 

Page 15



 
 

OFFICIAL 

2 
 

Publications Gateway 
Reference: 05543 

0 

Document Purpose Consultations 
 

Document Name Consultation for the proposed redesign of learning 
disability and autistic spectrum disorder (ASD) services 
in the North West. 
 

Author NHS England 
 

Publication Date 01 December 2016 
 

Target Audience Patients, carers and families, stakeholder and local 
learning disability groups, clinical commissioning group 
(CCG) accountable officers, care trust chief executives, 
local authority chief executives, directors of adult social 
services, NHS trust board chairs, NHS England 
directors of commissioning operations, communication 
leads, NHS trust chief executives across the North 
West region 
 

Additional Circulation List CCG clinical leaders, foundation trust chief executives, 
directors of finance 
 

Description  Trade unions, local authority overview and scrutiny 
committees, health and wellbeing boards, Healthwatch 
organisations 
 

Cross Reference ‘Building the right support’ (October 2015) 
https://www.england.nhs.uk/learningdisabilities/natplan/ 
 

Superseded Docs  
(if applicable) 

n/a 

Action Required Responses are requested to the consultation 
 

Timing / Deadlines  
(if applicable) 

12 weeks from the launch of the consultation 

Consultation details for 
further information 

northspecialisedcorporate@nhs.net  
North Specialised Commissioning Team 
Bevan House 
65, Stephenson Way, Liverpool  
L13 1HN 
0113 8254657 
 

Document Status 
This is a controlled document.  Whilst this document may be printed, the electronic 
version posted on the intranet is the controlled copy.  Any printed copies of this 
document are not controlled.  As a controlled document, this document should not be 
saved onto local or network drives but should always be accessed from the intranet.   
     

Page 16

https://www.england.nhs.uk/learningdisabilities/natplan/
mailto:northspecialisedcorporate@nhs.net


 
 

OFFICIAL 

3 
 

Proposed redesign of learning disability and autism 
spectrum disorders (ASD) services in the North West:  
 
Consultation 
 
Version number: DRAFT Version 2016-10-26 
 
First published: 01 December 2016 
 
Updated: (only if this is applicable) 
 
Prepared by: Lesley Patel 
 
Classification: OFFICIAL 
 
Equality and Health Inequalities statement  
 
Promoting equality and addressing health inequalities are at the heart of NHS England’s 
values. Throughout the development of the policies and processes cited in this 
document, we have: 

• given due regard to the need to eliminate discrimination, harassment and 
victimisation, to advance equality of opportunity, and to foster good relations 
between people who share a relevant protected characteristic (as cited under the 
Equality Act 2010) and those who do not share it; and  
 

• given regard to the need to reduce inequalities between patients in access to, 
and outcomes from healthcare services and to ensure services are provided in 
an integrated way where this might reduce health inequalities.  

 

Page 17



 
 

OFFICIAL 

4 
 

Contents 
 
  PAGE 

NUMBER 
 
 

Executive summary 5 

1 Introduction 7 

2 Background 8 

3 The proposed model of care for low and medium secure 
services 

11 

4 The options 14 
 

5 Financial details 18 
 

6 Consultation statements 22 

7 How to take part 24 

8 Feedback and next steps 25 

Appendix 1: Medium Secure supporting information 26 

 
  

Page 18



 
 

OFFICIAL 

5 
 

Executive summary 
 

NHS England is consulting for a period of 12 weeks (2 weeks has been added to 
the original 10 weeks to compensate for the Christmas period) on how low and 
medium secure services for people with a learning disability and/or autistic 
spectrum disorders (ASD) should be provided across the North West. The 
consultation builds on the commitment made in Building the right support to reduce 
reliance on inpatient care by developing community services for people with a 
learning disability/and or ASD. The proposals put forward in the consultation aim to 
ensure that people with a learning disability and/or ASD will: 

 
• have greater choice in their pathway of care with equal and fair access to 

services; 
• be able to live in a community setting;  
• continue to receive care and treatment, closer to home, at the appropriate level 

to meet their needs; 
• receive proactive healthcare to maintain health and wellbeing, and; 
• have access to acute assessment services / inpatient provision when needed. 

Focus 
 

The consultation is asking:  
 How should low and medium secure services for people with a learning disability 

and/or ASD be provided across the North West in the future? 

Current medium and low service provision:  

• The Mersey Care Whalley site (formally known as Calderstones Partnership 
NHS Foundation Trust) provides medium and low secure services and is part of 
Mersey Care NHS Foundation Trust 

• The Alderley Unit provides low secure services and is part of Cheshire and Wirral 
Partnership NHS Foundation Trust 

• The Auden Unit provides low secure services and is part of 5 Boroughs 
Partnership NHS Foundation Trust.  

The scope of the consultation:  
The consultation applies to the low and medium secure care pathway for people with 
a learning disability and/or ASD.  

 
Options 

 
1. Option one 

 
• This option would see the closure of the Mersey Care Whalley site and the 

provision of a smaller number of low secure beds across the North West. 
These would be supported by specialist support teams.  

• It is proposed that individuals receiving medium secure care who are 
currently accommodated on the sites that made up Calderstones Partnership 

Page 19



 
 

OFFICIAL 

6 
 

NHS Foundation Trust will receive medium secure care at the site being 
developed at Maghull (Merseyside).  

 
This is the preferred option and follows the vision of Building the right support.  

 
2. Option two 

• This option proposes retaining elements of the Mersey Care Whalley 
estate to provide low secure services, with a smaller bed base.  

• This is not the preferred option as it would involve maintaining services 
within an institutionalised setting which is geographically isolated (formerly 
Calderstones Partnership NHS Foundation Trust).  

 
Following the consultation, the results and recommendations for the future will be 
published on NHS England’s public website: www.england.nhs.uk  

 
How to take part  

 
You can take part in this consultation online at 
https://www.engage.england.nhs.uk/consultation/learning-disability-services or by 
requesting a printed copy of the consultation document.  

 
a. For further information or to request printed documents please contact: 

england.northspecialisedcorporate@nhs.net or telephone 011382 54657  
  

b. An easy read version of the document is also available online or via the 
contacts above.  Alternative formats can also be requested from the contacts 
above. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 20

https://www.engage.england.nhs.uk/consultation/learning-disability-services
mailto:england.northspecialisedcorporate@nhs.net


 
 

OFFICIAL 

7 
 

 
 
 
1 Introduction  

 
1.1 This consultation proposes a new model of care for those with a learning disability 

and/or autistic spectrum disorders (ASD) which will see a move away from 
inpatient care to care within appropriately designed community services offering a 
range of options. The proposed model of care reflects the ambition set out in 
‘Building the right support’, as explained further below. 
 

1.2 The services to be consulted on are low and medium secure services for people 
with a learning disability and/or ASD that are currently located at Mersey Care 
Foundation Trust Whalley Site (part of the Specialist Learning Disabilities Division, 
Mersey Care). The proposal and options for the future are described in section 
four of this document. 

  

Page 21



 
 

OFFICIAL 

8 
 

2. Background  
 
National context  

 
2.1 Children, young people and adults with a learning disability and/or ASD have the 

right to the same opportunities as anyone else to live satisfying and valued lives, 
and to be treated with dignity and respect. Wherever possible, they should have a 
home within their community, be able to develop and maintain relationships, and 
get the support they need to live healthy, safe and rewarding lives. It is important 
to note however, that some people are detained under the Mental Health Act and 
are therefore subject to certain limitations because of the risk they may present to 
themselves or others. 

 
2.2 For a minority of children, young people and adults with a learning disability and/or 

ASD who display behaviour that challenges and requires intervention, including 
those with a mental health condition, nationally we remain too reliant on inpatient 
hospital care. 

 
2.3 In 2012, a wide range of organisations including the Department of Health, the 

Association of Directors of Adult Social Services (ADASS), NHS Confederation 
and the Royal Colleges signed up to the Winterbourne View Concordat  which 
committed the signatory organisations to “the development of personalised, local, 
high-quality services” and “the closure of large-scale inpatient services”. Further 
information regarding the signatories and commitment can be viewed in the 
following link:  

 
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/213
217/Concordat.pdf  

 
2.4 Progress was, however, slow and many people with a learning disability and/or 

ASD were frustrated at the pace of change. Listening to these views and acting on 
them led NHS England in February 2015 to publicly commit to a programme of 
review of inappropriate and outdated inpatient facilities and of establishing 
stronger support in the community for people with a learning disability and/or ASD.  

 
2.5 This commitment culminated in the publication of a national plan on 30 October 

2015 by NHS England, the Local Government Association (LGA) and ADASS 
(‘Building the right support’), which set out how the NHS and local government 
would work together to improve community support and seek to close up to half of 
the inpatient capacity for people with a learning disability and/or ASD in England. 
The national plan contained a key objective of developing community services and 
using inpatient facilities for those people with a learning disability and/or ASD only 
when absolutely necessary and for short periods of time. Equal treatment and 
access to services is a key principle in ‘Building the right support.’ There are a 
number of people who require secure services for longer periods and these 
specialised services are considered later in this consultation.  
 

 

Page 22

https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/213217/Concordat.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/213217/Concordat.pdf


 
 

OFFICIAL 

9 
 

2.6 The framework for the design and provision of new services in the future.  Those 
principles are: 

 
• people should be supported to have a good and meaningful 

everyday life 
• care and support should be person centred, planned, proactive 

and coordinated 
• people with a learning disability and/or ASD should have choice and 

control 
• people should be supported to live in the community with support 

from and for their families/carers as well as paid support and 
care staff 

• people should have a choice about where and with whom they live, 
with a choice of housing 

• people should get good care and support from mainstream NHS 
services 

• people should be able to access specialist health and social care 
support in the community 

• when necessary, people should be able to get support to stay out of 
trouble; and 

• when necessary, when their health needs cannot be met in the 
community, they should be able to access high-quality assessment 
and treatment in hospital. 

 
2.7 Three key changes are being developed to implement the principles which are as 

follows: 
 
• first, local councils and NHS bodies have joined together to deliver better and 

more coordinated services – 48 new local transforming care partnerships 
(TCPs) have been formed across the country and will work with people with 
lived experience of these services, families, carers and key local stakeholders. 
The TCPs have agreed and are implementing plans which will be delivered 
over three years. The TCPs are made up of clinical commissioning groups 
(CCGs), NHS England’s specialised commissioners, providers and local 
authorities which cover the whole of England; 

 
• second, budgets will be aligned between the NHS and local councils to ensure 

the right care is provided in the right place. A new financial framework will aim 
to speed up discharges, particularly for those who have been in inpatient care 
the longest. For people who have been in hospital for five years or more, 
specific payments will be made by the NHS to local authorities to enable the 
needs of those people to be met in the community; and  

 
• third, ‘Building the right support’ sets out what support people and families can 

expect, wherever they live. It describes what good services should look like, 
framed around clear principles devised from the perspective of the people 
using those services. It gives people a clear picture of what they can expect 
from the services they use, while at the same time allowing TCPs the flexibility 
to design and commission services that meet the needs of people in their 
area.  

Page 23



 
 

OFFICIAL 

10 
 

 
2.8 In order to move forward with the national plan to improve the lives of people with 

a learning disability and/or ASD, there is a key focus on reducing reliance on 
inpatient services and providing more care within community settings. Therefore, 
services providing inpatient care are under review.  

 
Local context 
 
2.9 ‘Building the right support’ outlines that, as an alternative to inpatient care, people 

with a learning disability and/or ASD will be supported to lead more independent 
lives, and have a greater say about where they live and the support they receive. 
Central to the process proposed by the plan is that over the next three years there 
will be new, high quality, community based services for those with a learning 
disability and/or ASD. The plan envisages that, as these services are put in place, 
the requirement for low secure inpatient beds will reduce and some units may 
close altogether. Locally, a key part of the proposals developed for Lancashire and 
Greater Manchester is to provide a community model for some services currently 
offered by the Specialist Learning Disability Division of Mersey Care NHS 
Foundation Trust. 

 
2.10 Before it became the Specialised Learning Disability Division of Mersey Care NHS 

Foundation Trust, the former Calderstones Partnership NHS Foundation Trust 
operated the only remaining stand-alone NHS learning disability hospital in 
England, with 223 beds. Its core business is a forensic service. A forensic service 
provides for those people who require clinical care after being in contact with the 
legal system. The Specialised Learning Disability Division is commissioned to 
provide medium secure, low secure and specialist NHS services for adult men and 
women with a learning disability or other developmental disorders who present 
with extremes of serious challenging or offending behaviour. The majority of the 
people who use the forensic services come into NHS care after contact with the 
legal system or prisons and are supported on a care pathway through secure 
services and on into community settings. 

 
2.11 Greater Manchester and Lancashire commissioners, in line with the changes 

discussed within this document are developing their own community based models 
detailed in their published Fast Track Transforming Care Plans. 

 
2.12 In addition to the low and medium secure services provided through the 

Specialised Learning Disability Division, there are two further units in the North 
West based in Warrington (Auden Unit) and Alderley Edge (Alderley Unit). Both 
provide low secure services for the population of Cheshire and Merseyside in 
gender specific services. The Alderley Unit is a new purpose built building that 
could be used without any additional cost for one of the patient groups referred to 
in paragraph 3.10 below – those with an autistic presentation requiring a low 
stimulus environment. The Auden Unit would require more significant remedial 
work to meet the proposed model of care referred to in this consultation. 

Page 24



 
 

OFFICIAL 

11 
 

3. The proposed model of care for low and medium secure 
services 

 
Secure services - background 

 
3.1 The Mental Health Act is clear that where it is possible to treat a person safely and 

lawfully without detaining them, that person should not be detained. A person’s 
independence should be encouraged and supported and families should be fully 
involved. The current pathways often see people coming into the system via the 
Ministry of Justice where they may have been placed in high secure 
accommodation or mainstream prison, before progressing through medium and 
low secure services prior to discharge. This respects the full involvement of 
families and carers in the context of the limitations placed on a person’s 
requirements for care in secure services. 

 
3.2 The proposals for the re-provision of learning disability and/or ASD services in the 

North West can be categorised broadly into two areas for consideration: medium 
secure services and low secure services. These services both provide different 
levels of clinical care, and are at different stages in their development within the 
region. 
 
The proposed local model of care 

 
Medium secure services 

 
3.3 A consultation has already been undertaken by Mersey Care in relation to its 

provision of medium secure mental health services. The proposed model of care 
described in the previous consultation focused on developing an integrated 
medium secure service for people with mental health issues and a learning 
disability and/or ASD, co-located in Maghull (Merseyside). Mersey Care considers 
that centralising medium secure services will drive improvements in quality across 
the provision of services for those with a learning disability and/or ASD. The 
particular relevance of this to the current consultation is that it is proposed that 
individuals currently accommodated on the sites previously operated by 
Calderstones Partnership NHS Foundation Trust will receive medium secure 
services at the site being developed at Maghull (Merseyside) as part of Mersey 
Care’s plans.  

 
3.4 Mersey Care is transforming its whole secure provision in mental health services, 

which will include learning disability beds in line with ‘Building the right support, 
and to also meet the latest guidance and legislation around medium secure care 
and environmental standards.  

 
3.5 The proposed model of care for people requiring medium secure services reflects 

a commitment to excellence and innovation across the secure pathway and has 
been designed to improve the experience and outcomes for patients. The 
development would harness cutting-edge practice both in terms of clinical 
interventions and in the use of technological advances to support clinical delivery.  

 

Page 25



 
 

OFFICIAL 

12 
 

3.6 Developing technology has potential to empower those who use these services 
and increase their capacity to be partners in delivering their own clinical care, such 
as by increasing access to digital devices which allow them to monitor their own 
emotional state and wellbeing and use adaptive coping strategies between clinical 
sessions.  

 
3.7 The proposed model of care involves a new innovative learning disability service 

with the added advantage of co-location with general adult mental health medium 
secure services. This reflects the principle articulated in ‘Building the right support’ 
as follows: “specialist beds should be increasingly co-located within mainstream 
hospital settings as part of integrated specialist inpatient services, rather than in 
isolated stand-alone units”. 

 
3.8 The proposed model of care designed by Mersey Care is aimed at providing 

“Perfect Care” and a summary of its goals are set out in appendix one. 
 

Low secure services 
 

3.9 The proposed model of care in low secure services has been discussed with 
commissioners and national leaders and has gained wide traction and acceptance 
as innovative, affordable and above all, centred on service users.  More locally, 
over the last 18 months, there has been wide engagement with people who use 
services, families, carers and staff at sessions to help shape the detail of the 
proposal.  

 
3.10 The new model of low secure services proposed aims to provide approximately 60 

low secure beds across the North West, supported by community beds and 
specialist support teams. The model can be adapted based on the specific clinical 
needs of the population including transition from childhood to adulthood. The 
groups under consideration are: 

 
• Women 

 
There is a need to meet the growing demand for single sex accommodation to 
ensure that the best quality assessment and treatment is provided. The aim is for 
women who need these services to have the best opportunity to improve and 
progress on the care pathway, and spend the minimum time in a secure setting. 
Experience shows that single sex accommodation reduces risk and improves 
safety. 
 

• Those with learning disability and/or ASD   
 

There is an increasing demand for specifically designed low stimulus 
environments that manage this vulnerable group in a distinct way. The purpose is 
to ensure a structured, safe and empathetic approach to encourage the 
development of skills balanced with a healthy respect for privacy, in calm 
environments that reflect the sensory levels required. These services are unique 
and aim to provide the right opportunity for people to grow and adapt. 
 

 

Page 26



 
 

OFFICIAL 

13 
 

• Those with longer term needs 
 

There remains a need for a small number of individuals to provide services where 
the emphasis is on quality of life, a least restrictive environment and protection for 
both themselves and others. This need arises because of the longer term nature of 
risk management which can remain a constant challenge.  Further reduction of risk 
for these people is difficult given their inability to manage their own risks outside of 
a managed environment. 

 
• Those who require mainstream services 

 
There is a need to provide access to low secure services for people requiring high 
quality assessment and treatment in a safe environment, staying no longer than 
they need to. It is proposed that this service will be developed in such a way as to 
provide the necessary treatment programmes that are evidence based and result 
in positive outcomes for individuals. Particular attention in the proposed model of 
care is focussed on minimising the time spent in a secure environment. 

 
Step down provision 

 
3.11 Step down is not included within this consultation document.  When we refer to 

“services” on the Mersey Care Whalley site we are excluding step down for the 
purposes of this consultation.  However, for background information, a number of 
people with a learning disability and/or ASD currently receive long-term care in 
houses on the periphery of the main Mersey Care Whalley site. These services 
are known as step down. Should the Whalley site close, as is proposed in this 
consultation, where appropriate, these houses would be reviewed with the 
potential for them to become homes on a case by case basis following 
consultation with each individual patient. This would include consideration of de-
registering and seeking an alternative provider with the support and approval of 
the CQC.  

 
Economic case for change 

 
3.12 The proposed model of care and closure of the Mersey Care Whalley site is driven 

by the need to deliver a new community-focussed model of care for people with a 
learning disability and/or ASD, whilst also avoiding isolated services and improving 
the quality of service provision and outcomes. Beyond these outcomes, there 
would also be financial benefits flowing directly from the reconfiguration. Any 
savings that are achieved would be used to improve care in the new settings in 
line with ‘Building the right support’. More detailed financial information is provided 
in section five. 

Page 27



 
 

OFFICIAL 

14 
 

4. The options 
 

4.1 The proposed model of care has been driven by the joint publication of ‘Building 
the Right Support’ with NHS England, the LGA and ADASS.  This was consulted 
on widely and tested before it was finalised to support the development of modern, 
high quality care provision for those requiring inpatient learning disability and/or 
ASD services. 

 
4.2 As discussed, the proposed model of care envisages a move away from inpatient 

care to care within appropriately designed community services which provide a 
range of service options. There are two options to consider:  
 

• Option 1 - Closure of the Mersey Care Whalley site 
• Option 2 - Retention of part of Mersey Care Whalley site for some low 

secure services.   
 

This section of the consultation describes the two options and the rationale for 
both (as stated in paragraph 3.11 step down is not included in this consultation). 

 
There are two options to consider: 

 
Option one 

 
4.3 The closure of the Mersey Care Whalley site is based on the principles detailed in 

‘Building the right support’ and would involve the re-provision of new services 
across the North West for those with a learning disability and/or ASD. These 
bespoke services are described in paragraph 3.10 above and aim to ensure that 
the specific needs of patients are provided for in clinically designed environments.  
The proposed model of care aims to enhance the quality of care with improved 
integration into local communities, greater proximity to local services and easier 
access to public transport systems which are accessible across the region. This is 
the preferred option. 

 
Option two 

 
4.4 There is potential to retain elements of the Mersey Care Whalley estate to 

continue providing some existing low secure services. However, it is not the 
preferred option given it would involve maintaining services in an institutionalised 
setting which is geographically isolated.  

 
Why option one? 

 
4.5 The proposed model of care for the North West has been designed to secure a 

future for people with a learning disability and/or ASD which ensures that they will: 
 

• have greater choice in their pathway of care with equal and fair access to 
services 

• be able to live in a community setting  
• be part of a community with the same opportunities as everybody else 

Page 28



 
 

OFFICIAL 

15 
 

• continue to receive care and treatment, closer to home, at the appropriate 
level to meet their needs 

• receive proactive healthcare to maintain health and wellbeing  
• have access to acute assessment services/ inpatient provision when 

needed; and 
• be provided with specialist services where people who lack capacity to 

make such choices and will never attain that capacity will have the same 
opportunities as the wider population. 

 
4.6 The clinical benefits of the proposed model of care for people who use services 

are a reduced length of stay with modern and appropriate clinical interventions. It 
is envisaged that this model would be delivered in modern environments designed 
to meet the needs of this diverse patient group.  

 
4.7 The proposed model of care supports an overall reduction in inpatient beds and an 

investment in local provision that is more able to manage complex needs within 
the wider community. This can be delivered from existing budgets, however 
transition funding would be required and this would be funded by commissioners if 
option one is implemented. 

 
4.8 The proposed model of care considers the distinct cohorts of patients and their 

very unique and different needs.  A new model for the provision of low secure 
services in the North West would allow for focussed and appropriate intervention 
by skilled staff teams to ensure the least possible time is spent in hospital. 

 
4.9 The use of sites for secure services across the North West, including the Alderley 

and Auden Units, would promote greater access to larger surrounding 
communities with more accessible transport systems and an easier transition for 
people when they move on.   

 
4.10 Engagement undertaken to understand the views of people in relation to ‘Building 

the right support’ during 2015 informed us that patients prefer to live their daily 
lives as part of a community, like everyone else, and do not want to experience 
care that is remote from local services.  

 
4.11 People with a learning disability and/or ASD and their families and carers will 

continue to be central to the process of change, and the commissioners and 
providers involved are committed to ensuring that patients and families are always 
involved in decisions about their care and support. 

 
Why option two? 

 
4.12 Option two would potentially involve reduced capital and redundancy costs.  

However, while it may be more cost effective, the principles contained in ‘Building 
the right support’, as outlined in this document, suggest that it is not appropriate to 
continue to commission hospital beds in the kind of clinical setting located on the 
Mersey Care Whalley site. This is because it involves providing care in an 
institutionalised setting, situated in an isolated geographical area of Lancashire.  

 

Page 29



 
 

OFFICIAL 

16 
 

4.13 For this reason we have developed the proposed model of care which we think 
better meets the needs of people who use services and their carers/families. 

          
 
More about option one - the preferred option 

 
4.14 In light of the above it is proposed that all hospital beds on the Mersey Care 

Whalley Site will, subject to this consultation, close and be re-provided over the 
next three years, on a case by case basis, in the community or in new purpose 
built units elsewhere in the North West. This is based on the ‘homes not hospitals’ 
principle of ‘Building the right support’. 

 
4.15 The Mersey Care Whalley site has a large secure capacity which has been used 

as part of a historic care pathway, focussing solely on learning disabilities. This 
pathway has seen people with a learning disability and /or ASD progressing 
through medium and/or low secure accommodation and in and out of enhanced 
support services over a number of years and in some cases for most of their adult 
life. This is not aligned to modern day health care and does not fit with the current 
direction of travel and the principles set out in ‘Building the right support’. 

 
4.16 The Mersey Care Whalley site is remote and away from a variety of transport 

options, posing a number of difficulties for both patients and their families and 
carers. People are often far away from home, making access by their families and 
carers more difficult. Integration with larger communities is harder in isolated areas 
and it is equally more difficult to make the links needed to the local teams 
providing community services. This is articulated in ‘Building the right support’ as 
follows:  

 
“Assessment and treatment in a hospital should be part of a broader care 
and support pathway. Admissions should be to hospital services that are as 
local as possible, and inpatient services should coordinate closely with 
relevant community services and families/carers (particularly in the case of 
children) to prepare for discharge. Wherever appropriate, inpatient services 
should work closely and proactively in partnership with families in the 
process of assessment, formulation, diagnosis and treatment. Contact and 
communication with families should be actively supported (unless particular 
circumstances dictate that this is inappropriate or inadvisable) and as much 
continuity with life prior to admission as possible”. 

 
4.17 The retention of secure provision on the Mersey Care Whalley site does not 

support the change envisaged in ‘Building the right support’ and may promote the 
same cycles for people as have been seen in the past, including excessively long 
lengths of stay with movement around different parts of the Mersey Care Whalley 
site without a clear plan towards integration into community services. This is 
articulated in ‘Building the right support’ as follows:  

 
“Everyone who is admitted to a hospital setting for assessment and 
treatment should expect this to be integrated into their broader care and 
support pathway, with hospitals working closely with community mental 

Page 30



 
 

OFFICIAL 

17 
 

health, learning disability/autistic spectrum disorders and other services, 
including those providing intensive community and/or forensic support”. 
 

4.18 All service change proposals must comply with the Department of Health’s four 
key tests for service change. These are: 

 
• strong public and patient engagement 
• consistency with current and prospective need for patient choice 
• a clear clinical evidence base; and 
• support for proposals from clinical commissioners. 

 
4.19 We are satisfied that option one meets the four key tests.  

 
 

Page 31



18 
 

5.  Financial details 
 

The following section sets out the financial case for change, describing the financial 
impact of the proposed model of care.  This section details the capital and revenue 
impact of both options. Whilst the proposed changes are not driven by financial 
considerations, it is none the less important that the costs and benefits of the 
changes are understood. In broad terms the changes will reduce costs to the 
provider, thereby eliminating a projected deficit, and yield savings to 
commissioners, though significant capital investment is needed to achieve this. 

 
5.1 Overall health economy impact 
 

The annual running costs of the combined Calderstones and Mersey Care services 
relevant to this consultation at the time of the merger totalled £64.0m. Over the next 
four years, under the “do nothing” scenario, this was projected to increase to 
£68.4m.  By implementing the preferred model of proposed service changes, the 
total cost base will be reduced to £57.7m over the next four years, a cost reduction 
of £10.7m compared with the “do nothing” scenario.  Against the 2015/16 cost base, 
costs will be reduced by £6.3m.  The reduction in costs will enable Mersey Care to 
meet its financial obligations to achieve financial balance, and the proposed 
changes will allow for funding to be diverted into community services to support the 
discharge of patients. 
 
Bringing the Whalley site and Mersey Care services together by moving some or all 
of the medium and low secure services off the Whalley site would:  
 

• provide opportunities to integrate services to deliver savings; 
• reduce management costs; and 
• enable new ways of working which in turn will lead to greater efficiency.   

 
5.2 Mersey Care financial position 
 

Calderstones reported a financial loss for the 2015/16 financial year of £2.0m and 
did not have a plan to return to financial balance.  The financial plans submitted by 
Calderstones prior to the merger with Mersey Care showed a projected loss for 
2016/17 of £3.2m, which without major remedial action is projected to grow to 
£6.4m by 2019/2020.  The reduction in costs that will result from the proposed 
service changes will eliminate this deficit. 

 
5.3 Commissioner financial position 
 

Over the next four years, the proposed service reconfiguration will allow 
commissioners to discharge a total of 46 low secure and 18 medium secure 
patients from inpatient facilities into community-based care settings. The proposed 
discharges would contribute to the ambition to reduce the typical in-patient 
population at the Mersey Care Whalley site from 84 to 38 for low secure and 52 to 
34 for medium secure, during this period.  
 
Implementing the proposed model of care will allow commissioners to reduce the 
amount they are paying for learning disability services from £62.0m in 2016/17 to 

Page 32



 
 

OFFICIAL 

19 
 

£57.7m by 2019/20, a saving of £4.3m per annum by year four, without impacting 
on the level of services provided to patients, nor the financial viability of Mersey 
Care.   
 
By retaining some services on the Mersey Care Whalley site, but continuing the 
inpatient reductions, an additional £2m to £3m could be saved.   

 
5.4 Proposed investment in new services 
 

Over the next four years commissioners expect to reduce the amount spent on 
inpatient services and invest in community-based services.  This investment would 
fund specialist support teams providing discharge planning, admission prevention 
and wrap around support for patients.   
 
The level of investment in new services would increase steadily over the next four 
years as patients are discharged, to ensure that appropriate community services 
are in place to meet their need. 
 
In addition, for any patients discharged after a stay of five years or more, a ‘dowry’ 
will support them to move on, paid to the relevant local authority to help with the 
costs of support packages. Dowry payments will be funded from recurrent savings 
from inpatient services. 

 
5.5 Transitional funding  
 

The proposed reconfiguration requires that patients be relocated from the Mersey 
Care Whalley site either to new inpatient facilities or new community-based care 
settings, over a four year period.  During this time the Mersey Care Whalley site 
would still be in use and so Mersey Care would incur ‘double running’ costs, as is 
common to reconfigurations.  Commissioners have agreed in principle to fund 
these costs, totalling £15.5m over four years.  The double running costs would be 
slightly lower under option 2. 
 
In addition, as is typically the case during service reconfiguration projects, Mersey 
Care would need extra management support to deliver the new model as well as 
continuing to run its day to day operations. NHS England has agreed in principle to 
fund costs such as additional finance management, programme management and 
information technology infrastructure to help with this, totalling £6m. 
 
It is possible that the reconfiguration of services will result in staff redundancies. 
For option one, maximum redundancy costs have been estimated at £9.3m. 
Option two may involve reduced redundancy costs as some services would be 
retained on the Mersey Care Whalley site.  The current estimate of redundancy 
costs arising from option two is between £6.7m and £7.0m. 

 
  

Page 33



 
 

OFFICIAL 

20 
 

 
5.6 Summary of revenue costs 
 

The table below summarises the financial assessment of the two options. 
 
Option 2 has 2 variants based on the number of beds to remain on the Whalley 
site; whilst not being the preferred option this will be considered further on the 
outcome of the consultation. 

 

Total transitional support 
costs 2016-2020 

Option 1 
All services off 

the Whalley site 

Option 2a 
Some services 

remain at Whalley 
(40 beds) 

Option 2b 
Some services 

remain at Whalley 
(56 beds) 

£m £m £m 
Redundancy costs 9.3 7.0 6.7 
Double running costs 15.5 14.8 14.5 
Management support  6.0 6.0 6.0 
Total transitional support 30.8 27.8 27.2 

 

Recurrent annual savings 
from 2019/10 

Option 1 
All services off 

the Whalley site 

Option 2a 
Some services 

remain at Whalley 
(40 beds) 

Option 2b 
Some services 

remain at Whalley 
(56 beds) 

£m £m £m 
Commissioner savings 4.3 5.9 7.0 
Provider savings 6.4 6.4 6.4 
Total financial benefit 10.7 12.3 13.4 

 
 

5.7 Capital funding 
 

The capital required to fund option one, the removal of all services from the 
Mersey Care Whalley site, is £63m.  This includes the cost of the new medium 
secure unit (as part of the Maghull development), the development of low secure 
units and the development of community provision.   
 
For option two, which would see some services remaining on the Mersey Care 
Whalley site, the capital cost is between £37m and £48m depending on the 
number of beds which remain. Whilst option two has a lower capital cost, it is not 
the preferred option, as it will involve maintaining services in an institutional setting 
which is geographically isolated. 
 
These capital costs are best estimates of the likely capital requirement to provide 
the new buildings, based upon similar projects across the NHS. It is important to 
note that approval has not yet been granted for the full amount of capital that may 
be required, and so those proposals remain contingent on receiving the required 
approvals. 

 
  

Page 34



 
 

OFFICIAL 

21 
 

 
The capital costs for the two options are summarised below.  The table includes 
the proceeds from the sale of the Whalley site, or partial sale in the case of option 
2. The disposal proceeds have been estimated by the District Valuer using a 
standard methodology taking account of the current use of assets and estimating 
the fair value of assets not in use.   

 

Capital impact 

Option 1 
All services off 

the Whalley site 

Option 2a 
Some services 

remain at Whalley 
(40 beds) 

Option 2b 
Some services 

remain at Whalley 
(56 beds) 

 £m £m £m 
Capital costs 63.0 48.0 37.0 
Proceeds from disposal (19.9) (14.7) (14.7) 
Net capital investment 43.1 33.3 22.3 

 
 

5.8 Summary 
 
This section has described the financial implications of the proposed changes. 
Option one, with all services off the Mersey Care Whalley site, is not the cheapest 
option principally because of the higher capital cost.  However, this proposal is not 
about cost and savings but about providing the best quality service to patients and 
their families. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 35



 
 

OFFICIAL 

22 
 

6. Consultation statements 
 
6.1 We would like to hear your views on the issues set out in this document and we 

would welcome consideration of the statements set out below. It is appreciated 
that these statements are not extensive and represent a guide to some areas of 
the consultation that may generate views and opinions that will provide valuable 
feedback.  

 
6.2 In addition to providing views on the statements set out below, please add any 

additional comments in the box below.  
 

1. Adults who have a learning disability and/or ASD should have the 
opportunity to receive their care in a community setting close to their 
home. 

 
2. Some people who use services will require forensic services under the 

Mental Health Act in secure facilities for long periods of time as part of 
their programme of care. These people where possible will benefit from 
accommodation in smaller units that are adaptable to their needs with 
clear treatment goals. 

 
3. The proposed model of care would provide assessment pathways to 

ensure that the least restrictive care options are chosen and hospital care 
is considered only when all other choices have been exhausted.  

 
4. People with longer term needs who use services and require ongoing 

secure care should receive this in an environment that enhances their 
quality of life as effectively as possible. 

 
5. Based on the ‘homes not hospitals’ principle of ‘Building the right support’, 

institutionalised medium and low secure care should not be delivered on 
the Mersey Care Whalley site, (formerly Calderstones Partnership NHS 
Foundation Trust). As such option one set out in section four is the 
preferred option.  

Page 36



 
 

OFFICIAL 

23 
 

 
 
  

Please detail any further views you have here 

Page 37



 
 

OFFICIAL 

24 
 

7. How to take part  
 

7.1 You can take part in this consultation online at 
https://www.engage.england.nhs.uk/consultation/learning-disability-services or by 
requesting a printed copy of the consultation document.  

 
a. For further information or to request printed documents please contact: 

england.northspecialisedcorporate@nhs.net or telephone 011382 54657  
 

b. An easy read version of the document is also available online or via the 
contacts above.  Alternative formats can also be requested from the contacts 
above. 

Page 38

https://www.engage.england.nhs.uk/consultation/learning-disability-services
mailto:england.northspecialisedcorporate@nhs.net


 
 

OFFICIAL 

25 
 

8. Feedback and next steps 
 

8.1 The consultation on the proposed redesign of learning disability and/or ASD 
services in the North West will be open for 12 weeks from the date the 
consultation starts. 

 
8.2 All feedback received during consultation will be considered by NHS England 

and its commissioning partners, and key stakeholders. A short report, setting out 
the consultation feedback, will be published on NHS England’s web page with a 
link to our partners’ websites. 

 
 

Page 39



 
 

OFFICIAL 

26 
 

Appendix One - Medium Secure Supporting information 
 
The MSU development has described goals and methodology for care and 
treatment as detailed below: 
 
Our goal is to deliver perfect care to all of our service users all of the time.  The 
pursuit of excellence is fundamental to everything we do.  The aspirations, 
expectations and practice of our staff and management compel the service to set 
and achieve audacious targets which lead the field internationally.   
These targets aim to go beyond conventional consensus and embrace the 
opportunity to ensure care and treatment for service users is the best it can 
possibly be.  It is our aim that no one in our care will commit suicide or die early 
from preventable illness and complications.  The people who use our service will 
not experience avoidable restrictive and/or coercive practice and the care we 
provide will be consistent with the principles of No Force First.   
 
A culture of accountability, candour and learning is central to the goal of 
continuous improvement and developing safer and better services.   The care and 
treatment we provide will be unique for each patient.  Our approach recognises the 
enduring impact of the social and relational adversity many of them encounter and 
appreciates the complicating influence this can have when they are admitted to a 
secure hospital.   
 
The service will implement a Trauma Informed Care approach; staff will 
understand service users in the context of their life history and therefore will 
recognise and meet all their needs effectively and efficiently. 
 
The care and treatment we provide to service users will be: 
 

• Safe – avoiding injuries to people who use services from the care that is 
intended to help them; 

• Effective – providing services that are based upon scientific knowledge to 
all who could benefit and refraining from providing services to those not 
likely to benefit (avoiding underuse and overuse); 

• Patient-centred – providing care that is respectful of and responsive to 
individual people who use services preferences, needs and values, and 
ensuring that patient values guide all clinical decisions; 

• Timely – reducing waits and sometimes harmful delays for both those who 
receive and those who give care; 

• Efficient – avoiding waste in particular waste of equipment, supplies, ideas 
and energy; 

• Equitable – providing care according based upon individual need taking into 
account people who use services from the protected characteristics of Age, 
Disability, Gender, marriage and Civil Partnership, Maternity and 
Pregnancy, Race, Religion/belief, Sexuality and Trans/gender 
reassignment.   

 
The model of care will meet the requirement set out in the Medium Secure Service 
Specification, and will be delivered and governed under the following statutory 
frameworks policy and legislation. 

Page 40



 
 

OFFICIAL 

27 
 

 
• Mental Health Act 1983 (Amended 2007) and Code of Practice 
• Human Rights Act 1998 
• Mental Capacity Act 2005 and Code of Practice  
• Domestic Violence Crime and Victims Act 2004 
• Protection of vulnerable adults (2009) 
• The Care Programme Approach (1995) 
• Valuing People Now (2009) 
• Deprivation of Liberty Safeguards 

 
The highest professional and service standards will be maintained through 
adherence to the process of regulation, governance and guidance from; 
 

• National Institute for Clinical Excellence (NICE)  
• Care Quality Commission (CQC) 
• General Medical Council 
• Health and Care Professionals Council 
• Nursing and Midwifery Council 
• Ministry of Justice 
• Department of Health 

 
The medium secure unit model of care is consistent with Mersey Care’s vision and 
values and built upon the following four key principles enhancing quality and 
sustainability:  
 

• An emphasis on quality of care. 
• Financial responsibility and efficiency. 
• Positive and proactive partnerships. 
• Investment in our workforce. 

Page 41



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3. Presentation on the Proposal for Changes to Care at Calderstones Hospital NHS Trust
	Appendix 1 - North West Consultation Meeting Presentation
	Appendix 2 - Consultation Document
	Executive summary
	How to take part 
	1 Introduction 
	Medium secure services

	5.  Financial details
	5.8 Summary
	6. Consultation statements



